
 

 

 

 

 

RFP 20-0010 Business Card and Stationery Services 

Addendum 1 

Questions and Answers  

Final questions and answers to be posted by January 28, 2020 at Noon. 

1. What type of ink specifications are you looking for? We want a 4-color  
2. What type of paper do you want? Matte stock 
3. Are you sure you want embossed letterheads and thermographs? Yes, we 

want the embossing information provided as requested.  
4.  Would it be possible to get samples of all the pieces that are included in this 

RFP? That is not possible, as these will be the new items needed.  
5. So you DO want quotes on ONE LOT of 25 or 100 quantity on business cards? 

We would like quotes of smaller orders, as we are looking to provide that 
option in addition to larger runs. 

6. Do you have a count of different names for business cards? We do not have a 
head count. We issued 150 purchase orders for business cards last fiscal 
year, but those orders may have contained multiple names per order.  

7. May we please come to your office at a mutually agreeable time, later this 
week or early next, to receive two printed samples of each existing type and 
style of business card, letterhead and envelope that are the types of products 
that ATU wants to have printed under this Bid & subsequent Contract? We 
do not have samples of products as that question has already been asked and 
answered. We are not permitted to hold private meetings with perspective 
respondents prior to a solicitation opening. 

a. We’d like to please receive examples of the #10 envelopes, the 
“plain” business cards as well as those items with “embellishments” 
such as foil and embossing as mentioned in the RFP so we may 
respond with an appropriate and thorough solution in our Bid 
Response. 

b. Our goal is to have a firm understanding of how many different 
“items” (templates) are needed in the proposed portal. 

c. Besides business cards, letterhead and #10 envelopes, are there any 
other items (rack cards, flyers, posters, poster boards, foam core 
boards, etc.) that ATU anticipates ordering via the portal during the 
1-year contract period (and beyond, as warranted)? Not at this time. 

8. Does the University currently have and utilize a web based portal print 
ordering system? No, we do not.  



a. If so, may we please see it? 
b. If so, are you able to share with us the name of the vendor and/or the name 

of the portal technology currently being used? 
9. Is ATU anticipating that every printed product contained in the portal will be 

initially emailed to the winning printing firm in the form of a “print-ready PDF file” 
with bleeds and crop marks (truly print ready) so the firm can “setup” the files in 
the portal in the beginning? We will send one PDF and expect it to be setup for 
future years.  

a. Or will the winning printing firm be asked to do Graphic Design to create 
and/or fix files that are not print ready as per generally accepted printing 
standards? 

b. How may different print files (templates) does ATU anticipate sending the 
winning printing firm for setup in the portal? To be determined.  

10. How many “multiple layers of approvals” will you be requiring in the proposed 
portal when orders are placed? This will be determined after the award.  

a. Would you please provide examples of what you are anticipating and 
requiring in the portal approval process? 

11. Are the purchasing cards a Mastercard, Visa, AMEX or Diners Club? Visa 
12. Will every order be paid at the time of order on the portal with a Univ purchasing 

card or will some orders be invoiced to the Univ? We would like flexibility for both, 
but anticipate most orders being placed on Visa. Instruction for invoice submission 
will be included on purchase order.  

a. If invoicing is involved, to whom are those invoiced directed? 
i. The person who places the order? 

ii. Purchasing 
b. What are the standard payment intervals of ATU? 

13. How many ATU staff members will have access to ordering on the 
portal?  Academic, Purchasing, Leadership, Board of Trustees, Support, Admin, 
Engineering, DPS, etc. All. Unsure of the number.  

a. 100% of the staff?  What is that number of people? 
b. Admins only?  What is that number of people? 
c. In addition to the main Russellville campus, will staff members at ATCC and 

folks in Clarksville, Danville, Ozark and Paris all have access to order from 
the portal and will the winning contract printing firm be shipping printed 
items to each of those locations directly? Yes 

14. Will the ATU Procurement Department open the bids in a public forum and review 
them publicly (sometime known as a “public bid review meeting”)? 

If so, may we please be invited to it? Since this is an RFP and not an Invitation for Bid, they 
will be opened publicly, but prices will not be read as they are in a separate sealed 
envelope, so the only information that will be shared aloud will be the name of each 
respondent.  
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